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Howard Community College  
RFP: Website Content Management System 
Bid Number: 22P-007 
RFP Opening Date: June 10, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM No. 2 

 
Q1. If you’ve received any CMS demonstrations as part of your pre-RFP process, could you kindly list those 
systems? 
See response to Q6 in Addendum 1. Which systems the College investigated should have no bearing on the RFP 
responses from individual firms. 
 
Q2. While the websites are being migrated as-is into the new CMS, the vendor is responsible for meeting WCAG 
2.1 AA accessibility standards. If there are accessibility issues on the existing websites, is the vendor therefore 
responsible for fixing these as part of the migration into the CMS? 
The College expects the templates, styles, and core functionality to be built to WCAG 2.1 standards. Migrated 
content will be the responsibility of the college. For example, if the body of a migrated page has an out of 
compliance table, then we would not expect the vendor to fix the table. PDFs will also be the responsibility of the 
college. 
 
Q3. Are you able to estimate the approximate number of templates or components across the three sites that are 
being migrated to a new CMS? 
Approximately 20 templates are currently used, but the College feels that this number could be reduced in 
differently architected systems. Other components to the site include faculty profiles, course descriptions, 
program finders for credit and non-credit courses, photo albums, college alerts, and an office directory. 
 
Q4. We note that “only selected data will be imported into the new system.” Are you able to estimate how many 
pages require migration? 
See section 1.3 of the RFP. 
 
Q5. As a proprietary web CMS supplier, we’d really like to respond to this RFP. However, in light of the 
College’s recent job advertisement for a web developer with open-source skills, could we please clarify if open 
source is the direction you’re taking? 
The College is looking for the best CMS to meet its need and has not decided on open source. The College is open 
to the benefits of either option. 
 
Q6. If open to both proprietary and open-source options, do you prefer an open-source solution or a commercial 
CMS? 
See answer to Q5 above. 
 
Q7. What are your principal pain points with the Site Executive CMS? 
A lack of development of the product over the closing years of the product’s life has hampered its usability in 
areas like calendars, forms, and other areas. Also, Site Executive is based in Cold Fusion, which limited the 
College’s ability to do in-house development. 
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Q8. Do you currently pay any annual fees such as License, Support, or Hosting (application/web)? 
Yes. The College pays annual fees for these items. 
 
Q9. Are you open to an annual license fee for the proposed CMS? 
Yes. 
 
Q10. Can you please advise how the cost is to be evaluated, for example, is it year one development and license & 
support costs or the total cost over 2,3, or 5 years? 
The College will evaluate pricing based on the total cost over the life of the contract, as outlined in section 3.11, 
as well as the year 1 pricing (to ensure that the year 1 costs are not prohibitively expensive). 
 
Q11. Can you please let us know how many concurrent users you expect to have logged into the CMS at one 
time? 
Generally there are no more than 10-15 users logged in simultaneously. Over the last six months about 100 
different users have made at least one page edit. 
 
Q12. Could you share with us a more comprehensive RFP timeline that identifies key dates for the subsequent 
events including Pricing Proposal phase, Presentation/Demo, Award Decision, etc.? 
Please see section 3.6. Additionally, it is estimated that oral presentations will take place the week of June 27th 
and that the price proposal documents will be sent out after evaluation of the oral presentations is complete. The 
college hopes to obtain board approval for the project in July. 
 
Q13. Section 3.9 PRICING of the RFP states that respondents are not allowed to provide cost information until 
the next phase, the Price Proposal phase. However, Section 3.10 REJECTION states incomplete price proposal 
page would be grounds for rejection of the proposal. Could the College clarify whether a pricing proposal needs 
to accompany the technical proposal? 
This refers to the proposal as a whole, inclusive of the price proposal. An incomplete price proposal is grounds for 
rejection of the proposal for firms that are asked to participate in that stage. As stated in the RFP, price proposals 
are not to be included with the technical proposal. 
 
Q14. Can you share if the budget is inclusive of hosting costs? 
The budget for this project is intended to cover the efforts for migration, while hosting would be a separate, 
ongoing cost. Please note that the hosting costs will still be a part of the price evaluation. 
 
Q15. If cloud based hosting is an option, can the College team please provide the following insights so we can 
select the appropriate hosting package? 

1. Uptime Guarantee 
a. Greater than 99.9% guaranteed. 

2. Pageviews per month 
a. Peaks at 1 million/month during fall registration. 

3. Visits per month 
a. Unique pageviews are approximately 800k during fall registration. 

4. Data storage 
a. 100GB 



3 
 

5. Concurrent user sessions 
a. Not known. Typically in the hundreds. 

6. Number of doc routes 
a. The College uses other services for document workflows. 

7. Page load time 
a. Varies by page. 

8. Peak period traffic 
a. See above. 

9. Is a Content Delivery Network needed? 
a. No 

10. Is a Web Application Firewall (WAF) needed? 
a. Not currently used, but the College would like to discuss benefits and costs with the intended 

awardee. 
11. Is personalization needed for hosting, such as specific security requirements? 

a. Standard hosting requirements are sufficient. 
 
Q16. Do you have a preference for either proprietary or open source? 
See Q5 above. 
 
Q17. Is 99.9% uptime a required contracted SLA guarantee or expectation? If contracted SLA, can this be revised 
to 99.95% which is the PaaS industry standard? 
The college expects a guaranteed SLA with performance assurances as outlined in the RFP, and has no objection 
to higher levels of guaranteed uptime. 
 
Q18. Are you open to non-US vendors completing this project, for example, a Canadian firm? 
Yes, but in accordance with federal regulations, it is required that any data hosting site that hosts College data be 
located in the United States. College data may not be hosted outside of the United States for any reason, for any 
period of time. 
 
Q19. Are there any hard deadlines driving the launch of this website, and if so, could you please share them? 
The project is driven by the impending end-of-life of the current CMS. See section 1.5 of the RFP. 
 
Q20. How many vendors have been invited to respond to this RFP? Is there currently an incumbent vendor, and if 
so have they been invited to bid? 
This is a publicly advertised RFP. An incumbent is allowed to bid if they choose to participate. 
 
Q21. Do you have a planned budget or a not-to-exceed cost for this project? Can you share that number (or even 
a broader target range) 
See Q10 in Addendum 1. 
 
Q22. Can you tell us a little bit about the team we’d be working with on your end? 
The firm will work most closely with the College’s web services and public relations and marketing teams. 
 
Q23. What third party systems integrate with your sites right now (CRMs, event management, etc.)? What future 
integrations (if any) do you envision? 
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The College links to its third party systems (CRM, application sites) or uses javascript to embed third party 
services (forms, calendars in limited place). The College is interested in the possibilities for integrations with 
CRM and SIS (the College’s ERP is Ellucian Colleague), but it is not within the scope of this RFP. 
 
Q24. Are there any multilingual requirements for the sites, and if so could you describe them? 
No. 
 
Q25. What are the current user roles on the site? Do you anticipate needing additional roles/permissions for 
users on the new site? 
Users are currently given a read, write, or admin permission to a folder which can be applied to child folders if 
desired. Users can also be put into groups which can be given the same type of permissions. User access to 
specific functionality, such as HTML source, tables, image insertion, head access, etc., can also be limited. The 
College expects this level of roles/permissions and welcome any further possible granulation of permissions. 
 
Q26. Does this project include any expectations regarding SEO? If so, please describe. 
The College expects the new CMS to serve as a platform to optimize/improve our SEO in anticipation of a later, 
full site redesign – which is not within the scope of this RFP. 
 
Q27. Do you currently have a hosting contract, or is this something you would like the selected vendor to assist 
with setting up? 
See Q4 and Q5 from addendum 1. 
 
Q28. Where is the site currently hosted? 
The site is currently hosted at a commercial hosting facility in Baltimore. 
 
Q29. What is the big picture goal for this project? Are you open to a phased approach with an MVP or do you 
envision all of the ideas launching at once in a big project? 
The larger goal for this project is a fully redesigned website that meets the colleges needs for marketing to all its 
prospective audiences. A modern website (current design is 7 years old) that allows for flexibility to create new 
pages rapidly. The first phase is the CMS replacement (this RFP) and the second phase will be the redesign (a 
fully separate RFP from this one). 
 
Q30. Will each of the 3 sites have the same functionality and design? What are the main differences between the 
three sites? 
The three sites are available for viewing on the world wide web: www.howardcc.edu, www.repstage.org, 
and www.laurelcollegecenter.org.  They have similar functionality as they are based in same CMS. 
 
Q31. Will the current content be migrated as is to the new sites, or will the content be updated/revised? If the 
latter, can you describe your vision for that process – what responsibilities you will take on for content 
development vs. what you expect the vendor to tackle? 
Content will be migrated as-is to the new sites, but the College will be cleaning up content over the next several 
months to minimize that process. A full content combing/cleansing/rewrite is not within the scope of this RFP. 
We’d like the vendor to propose how they will migrate this content over via whatever manual or automated 
process they deem best suited for the job. 

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.howardcc.edu%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdcusimano%40howardcc.edu%7C4ed4fe6880d54c41e4c008da43335f9c%7C6307de3c3f084db3922aeddb9fd2098f%7C0%7C0%7C637896185184709033%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=krUvEp7nr8dyp9MgDrxGt5Bg8BW%2B3AES2Iy0%2BlH7gJs%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.repstage.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdcusimano%40howardcc.edu%7C4ed4fe6880d54c41e4c008da43335f9c%7C6307de3c3f084db3922aeddb9fd2098f%7C0%7C0%7C637896185184709033%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=a72Ic6HI5QqyQfvV0tvTHnEnERf94NOSCa54j5wKQfA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.laurelcollegecenter.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cdcusimano%40howardcc.edu%7C4ed4fe6880d54c41e4c008da43335f9c%7C6307de3c3f084db3922aeddb9fd2098f%7C0%7C0%7C637896185184709033%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=JMErruDUohP%2BDTizqYAz7LNVn5iqJ4plcpWcyvjI980%3D&reserved=0
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Q32. Since this project is not considered a “site redesign” but a “CMS migration” could you please tell us your 
expectations regarding look and feel of the sites on the new CMS platform? Since a new front end will need to be 
built to support the new CMS, will there be any interest in updating the site’s theme/design at this time? Some 
economies of scale can be realized if a new design is implemented at the time of the migration. Would you be 
interested in a redesign quote as an add on to this proposal? 
Largely the College expects the look and feel to remain the same during this migration. However, the templates 
and underlying architecture are not required to be the same. Any groundwork the migration can lay for improving 
the redesign phases would be beneficial. The redesign is not within the scope of this RFP and the College is not 
interested in receiving quotes for those services at this point. 
 
 
Issued on June 3, 2022. 


